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Qiu Jiangang
Chairman

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited (the
“Company”) (formerly known as United Metals Holdings Limited) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2008.

CHANGE IN MAJOR SHAREHOLDER

2008 marked a significant milestone in the development of the Group.
On 5th November, 2008, the Company issued 159,168,308 new shares
and a three-year maturity convertible note with a principal amount of
HK$106,200,000. Upon the completion of share transfer on the same
date, the Group became a subsidiary of China National Nuclear
Corporation (“CNNC"). Following the enlargement of its share capital, the
Group is backed by strong cash flow for future development and
investments.

CNNC is a mega-sized enterprise solely owned by the State and the only
PRC enterprise covering a full range of nuclear-technology industries. As
the major investor and owner of nuclear power stations in China, CNNC
is a principal in nuclear power development and related technology
development, as well as a supplier of nuclear power designs, nuclear fuel
and nuclear technology equipment.
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Chairman’s Statement = /& $ & £ (continued 4)

RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group reported turnover of
approximately HK$209,082,000 (2007: HK$234,919,000), a decrease by
approximately 11%. Gross profit was approximately HK$8,916,000 (2007:
approximately HK$25,281,000). Consolidated loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year was approximately HK$19,717,000,
compared to loss of approximately HK$4,356,000 for the previous year.
2008 results of the Group comprised mainly results of the die casting
business of the Group’s subsidiary.

DIE CASTING BUSINESS

2008 was a challenging year for the die casting business of the Group.
The Group reported a year-on-year decrease in turnover of approximately
11% as its die casting business had been severely affected under the
financial crisis. The segment was also subject to aggravated cost pressure
given surging prices for raw materials and energy as well as rising staff
costs. Natural disasters also took its toll, as some enterprises under the
Group reported suspension in production for as long as three weeks in
the wake of the flood in Southern China.

Amid a challenging environment, the Group reinforced its solid business
foundations and strived to maximise value for shareholders with the
implementation of effective operational measures, including stringent cost
control and management.

The Group believes that its die casting business has been set in the right
direction and will make positive contributions to the Group in the medium
to long term.

URANIUM LEVERAGING BUSINESS

As a form of clean energy, nuclear power has become the subject of
focused development for the PRC Government. On the back of CNNC's
leadership and solid experience in the uranium leveraging business, the
Group is actively expanding its overseas uranium leveraging business and
identifying related opportunities to answer the demand for uranium
resources created by the development of nuclear power in nuclear power
generation. Through the operation of this business, we expect to deliver
sound operating results to reward shareholders for their support.
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Chairman’s Statement = /& $ & £ (continued 4)

BUSINESS PROSPECTS AND CONCLUSION

The renaming of the Company as CNNC International Limited (FFAZE A
fR 72 F]), as approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 7th August, 2008, signified the expansion of the scope
of business of the Group to include the uranium leveraging business, in
addition to its existing die casting business. Such expansion should unveil
new development opportunities and facilitate business diversification of
the Group.

Leveraging the wealth of experience of our new management, expert
task forces and proficient technical teams as well as the strong support
of shareholders, the Group will continue to look into business
opportunities, with a particular focus on expanding the uranium
leveraging business, with a view to enhancing shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers and business partners for their
long-standing support. Thanks are also due to our management and staff
for their dedication and contributions during the past year.

Qiu Jiangang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9th April, 2009
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Management Discussion & Analysis

MARKET OVERVIEW

2008 was a year full of challenges and difficulties to the Group’s die
casting business. In particular, the spread of financial crisis in the second
half of the year caused rapid economic downturn on a global scale. Being
the key driver market for casting parts, the automotive industry was the
one of the hardest hit industries. The Group’s die casting business was
severely affected as many of our customers from the overseas reduced
inventory level and implemented more prudent purchasing policies in
anticipation of contracting retail demand. In addition, the industry also
faced challenges brought about by Renminbi appreciation, rising
production costs particularly in relation to raw materials and labour, and
natural disasters such as flooding in Southern China.

With the downturn of the global economy and a difficult operating
environment ahead in 2009, further contraction in die casting product
market, especially international retail consumption, is expected.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, the operating results of the
Group mainly came from the die casting business. Turnover of the Group
for the year under review dropped 11% to approximately
HK$209,082,000 as compared to the last financial year (2007:
HK$234,919,000). The decrease was mainly attributable to (i) the
decrease in demand for die casting products from overseas market in the
second half of the year and (i) severe flooding occurred in June 2008
resulting in suspension of production for weeks. Loss after taxation were
approximately HK$19,717,000 (2007: loss of HK$4,356,000) for the year.
The gross profit margin decreased to 4.3% (2007: 10.8%) mainly because
of adverse factors such as Renminbi appreciation, higher inflation,
reduction in export tax rebates as well as rising energy and labor costs
during the year under review.

Despite the declining performance for the year under review, the Group
continued to maintain a strong financial position. Total assets as at 31st
December, 2008 increased to approximately HK$470 million as compared
to approximately HK$190 million as at 31st December, 2007 as a result of
the issue of new shares and a convertible note during the year.
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Management Discussion & Analysis &2 & = i & DA

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the cost of sales increased because of
rising inflation and customers demand declined due to the global
economy downturn. Therefore, the Group actively undertook a series of
measures to overcome the challenges encountered and to mitigate any
negative impact brought by the deteriorating economic environment. The
Group continued to apply stringent cost and quality controls, upgraded
the production process and developed advanced technology for product
improvement.

Effective Cost and Quality Control Measures

To counter the increase in labor cost, mainly due to inflation and increase
in minimum wages, the Group introduced full automation as a long-term
strategy. Automatic spray and extract system was installed in the zinc
casting operation to reduce the number of senior technicians, leading to
a corresponding reduction in operating cost and an improvement in the
quality of products.

In view of the surge in energy cost, the Group made substantial research
and development efforts to study alternative fuel options for production.
Arrangements were also made to enhance furnace utilization so as to
reduce the energy cost.

Technology Improvement and Increased Efficiency
During the year under review, as a result of the application of quick-
change-over-mould technology, the efficiency of multi-parts production
was increased, requiring smaller production area and lower levels of
inventory.

The Group always strives to provide products of top quality and to
enhance production efficiency through technology innovation and
development. During the year under review, our proprietary technologies
used in the casting operation in China were documented and applications
were made to register patent rights. Two of them have since been
approved and patent rights have been granted. The Group will continue
to invest in research and development to maintain our competitiveness in
the market.

Strong Relations with Clients

With over 50 clients at present, the customer base of the Group’s die
casting business spans numerous countries and regions around the world.

Despite the difficult macroeconomic environment prevailing in the year
under review, the Group was able to secure a world-class client which
produces home furnace control valve after this company had decided to
close down their own casting operation in the USA and outsource all
their casting parts to the Group.
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Management Discussion & Analysis &2 & = i & DA

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLAN OF THE
GROUP

Management of the Group expects the effect of the negative
macroeconomic environment will continue through to 2009. Incoming
orders of die casting products will dwindle accordingly as the demand for
commodities from all sectors is expected to drop, in particular for the
automotive industry. The worsened economy will intensify competition
and bring cost pressure to the industry, cutting profitability to a lower
level. On the other hand, while material cost has slightly fallen in the
market, there is no sign that the structural costs including labor and
energy costs will be lowered in the near future.

The Group will continue to exercise stringent cost and quality controls,
strengthen controls in all financial areas including asset management and
minimize all inventory levels.

The Group will strive to stay ahead of its competitors by investing more
resources in technology innovation and by engaging more heavily in hi-
tech production. Our strategy will focus on the improvements in our
automated manufacturing processes with the aim to reduce labor costs
and enhance production yield. Two task forces are being set up to
research and develop solutions for energy saving, automatic complete
system in surface finishing and porosity-free casting technology.

The Group will also concentrate its sales effort in the China domestic
market, as China is expected to recover from the economic crisis earlier
than other markets.

While closely monitoring the performance of its die casting business, the
Group has also strived to diversify its business and maximize shareholders’
benefits by looking into investments and business opportunities,
particularly those relating to uranium leveraging which promising return is
expected by the market.

Looking ahead, the operating environment in the coming year will be
more difficult. Nonetheless, with the Group’s strong financial strength,
solid foundation built over the years, support of the shareholders and
prudent plans for the future, the management has confidence in
expanding into new uranium leveraging business while riding its existing
business through, leading to a rapid growth in the Group's performance
within a short period of time.
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Management Discussion & Analysis & 32 [& 51 5% & 7 1T (continued )

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group employed approximately 1,420
(2007: 1,906) full-time employees of whom 27 (2007: 21) were based in
Hong Kong, 1,393 (2007: 1,885) were based in the Group’s factories in
Dongguan, the PRC. Total staff cost incurred during the year amounted to
approximately HK$59,978,000 (2007: HK$58,233,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group’s employees are based
on their performance, working experiences and condition prevailing in the
industry. In addition to basic salaries, retirement schemes and medical
schemes, discretionary share options and performance bonuses to eligible
staff are according to the financial results of the Group and the
performance of individual employees. To raise work quality and
management abilities of its employees, the Group provides job rotation,
in-house training and external training courses to employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2008, total bank borrowings amounted to
HK$16,000,000 (At 31st December, 2007: HK$19,334,000) which would
be due within one year. The bank borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, and bear interest at rates calculated with reference to Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus basis.

The Group had a net current assets amounting to HK$433,855,000 (At
31st December, 2007: HK$67,776,000) and a current liabilities of
HK$56,564,000 as at 31st December, 2008 (At 31st December, 2007:
HK$50,258,000). Average stock turnover days increased to 73 days as at
31st December, 2008 from 72 days as at 31st December, 2007. Debtors’
turnover days decreased from 79 days as at 31st December, 2007 to 77
days as at 31st December, 2008.

Capital expenditures on plant, equipment, leasehold improvements and
construction in progress totalled HK$17,218,000 in 2008 (2007:
HK$25,762,000), of which HK$3,015,000 (2007: HK$7,323,000) was
related to the construction cost of the new manufacturing plant situated
in Shanghai, the PRC. Furthermore, HK$18,000,000 (At 31st December,
2007: HK$29,701,000) was committed as at 31st December, 2008 to
purchase additional property, plant and equipment, and the whole
amount was contracted for but not provided in the financial statements.
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Management Discussion & Analysis & 2 & & 5 & 7 4T (continued )

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)
Net cash from operating activities amounted to HK$14,775,000 (2007:
HK$20,454,000). The Group’s cash on hand and bank balances increased
from HK$18,807,000 as at 31st December, 2007 to HK$400,150,000 as
at 31st December, 2008. The increase was due to the issue of new
shares and a convertible note during the year.

Total shareholders’ funds increased from HK$189,674,000 as at 31st
December, 2007 to HK$469,640,000 as at 31st December, 2008, due
mainly to the issue of new shares and a convertible note during the year.

As at 31st December, 2008, the gearing ratio, in terms of total debts to
total assets, increased to 0.23 (At 31st December, 2007: 0.21). The
increase was mainly a result of the issue of a convertible note.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 31st December, 2008.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s income and expenditure of raw materials and manufacturing
cost are mainly denominated in USD, HKD and RMB. Fluctuations of the
exchange rates of RMB against foreign currencies could affect the
operating costs of the Group. Currencies other than RMB were relatively
stable during the year, the Group did not expose to significant foreign
exchange risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management will continue to monitor foreign
exchange exposure and will take prudence measures to minimize the
currency translation risk. The Group will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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Management Discussion & Analysis & ¥ & & & [ 5 1T (continued )

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There has been no material significant change in the capital structure of
the Group during the year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets for the year ended 31st
December, 2008 (2007: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has given guarantees to banks in respect of general facilities
granted to its subsidiaries. The extent of such facilities utilized by the
subsidiaries at 31st December, 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$16,000,000 (At 31st December, 2007: HK$19,334,000).
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the year ended 31st December, 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) are
collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims to enhancing the
Company’s value for stakeholders. Roles of the Board include reviewing
and guiding corporate strategies and policies; monitoring financial and
operating performance; ensuring the integrity of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting systems; and setting appropriate policies in
managing risks of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of seven members including two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”), whose details are set out on pages 20
and 23. Members of the Board have different professional and industry
experiences and background so as to bring in valuable contributions and
advices for the development of the Group’s business. More than one-third
of the Board are INEDs.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely information of
the Group through management and are able to obtain independent
professional advices on issues whenever deemed necessary by the
directors.

Board members meet regularly to discuss strategies and business issues,
including financial performance of the Group. During the year, the Board
held 4 meetings; and Board members can attend meetings in person or
through electronic communications means in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. A record of
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings is set out on page 19.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
in order to reinforce their independence and accountability. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing. The
Chairman leads the Board's workings and proceedings, while the Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the Group’s strategies
and policies and for conducting the Group’s businesses.
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Corporate Governance Report 1% &8 2 (continued )

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all the directors, all
the directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. With the assistance of the accounting
department, which is under the supervision of the qualified accountant of
the Company, the directors ensure that the financial statements of the
Group have been properly prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The directors also
ensure that the publication of the accounts of the Group is in a timely
manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group’s accounts is set out in
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report &2 E 76 ¥ & (continued )

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard investments
of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The system of internal controls aims to help achieving the Group’s
business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information. However,
the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement in the financial statements or loss
of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure when
business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material controls
in area of financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risks management as well as physical and information system security.

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives, safeguard
asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure proper maintenance
of books and records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations.

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and risk
management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and effective.
Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control on difference
areas had been submitted to the Audit Committee. It is noted that there
is no significant areas of concern which may affect the effectiveness of
the internal control system.

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Board is satisfied
that the Group has fully complied with the code provisions on internal
control as set out in C.2.1 of the CG code.
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Corporate Governance Report &% &8 & (continued )

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

1% S ED B &
RAEE BNAR A KBATEY %R
KT ZHEBRIMT

9))

Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

EriR 1t AR 75 gt/ EHER
2008 2007
—EENE —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Audit services Ei RS 900 1,018
Non-audit services (i.e. Professional Service) JEEET R (ANHZE R 180 —

1,080 1,018

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company's Audit Committee was first established in December 2002
and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the Group’s
financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk
management and maintaining good and independent communications
with the management as well as external auditor of the Company. Its

current members include:

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Huang Mingang

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of the
Company. Mr. Cheong has appropriate related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is employed
by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year. The minutes of
the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for noting and
for action by the Board where appropriate. The attendance of each
member is set out on Page 19.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s interim and
annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2008 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system and made recommendations to the
Board.
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Corporate Governance Report &2 & 76 & (continued )

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established in September
2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Han Ruiping (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Huang Mingang

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the remuneration committee are the INEDs
of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their specific
remuneration package for directors and senior management, including
terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension
rights, compensation payments and other long-term incentive schemes by
reference to market conditions, performance of the Group and the
individual and corporate goals and objectives as set by the Board from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year. The
minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were tabled to the
Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate. The
attendance of each member is set out on Page 19. During the meeting,
the committee members discussed the policy for the remuneration of
executive directors and senior management, assessed the performance of
executives and approved the terms of Executive Directors’ service
contracts.
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Corporate Governance Report 1% &8 2 (continued )

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the Company’s
bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to receive notice of and to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint another
person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. Shareholders who
hold not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen, any
member from the respective committees, must attend the annual general
meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries. External
auditor shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual general
meetings and are available to assist the Directors in addressing queries
from shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and the
preparation and content of their auditor report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders. The
information provided will not only comply with the different requirements
in force but to provide additional information to enhancing
communications with shareholders and the investment public. It is part of
a continuous communication that encompasses meetings and
announcements to the market as well as periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary announcement of results and interim and annual
reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information of the Group is provided.
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AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS EgeZzHERLE
Audit  Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meeting
EERER BEZZECEE FMZEgER
Total number of meetings held during B ZE —Z T )\4F 4 2 1
the year ended +-A=+—H1t
31st December, 2008 FERIZEZEH
Number of meetings attended: P fE g R e :
Non-Executive Director FBITES
Mr. Qiu Jiangang BB M 56 4 1(100%) N/A N/A
(appointed on 5th November, 2008) (ZZ2ZENEF+—HARBEZT) TEA TEA
Mr. Huang Mingang = 5N A 1(100%) N/A 1(100%)
(appointed on 5th November, 2008) (B N\F+—ARBEZTE) NERA
Mr. Wong Wing Sing BxBEEE 3(100%) 2(100%) N/A
(resigned on 3rd December, 2008) (ZZEZENF+-A=HET) TEA
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Han Ruiping iR kA 1(100%) N/A 1(100%)
(appointed on 5th November, 2008) (ZEEN\F+—ARBEERT) TEA
Mr. Xu Hongchao SRR A 1(100%) N/A N/A
(appointed on 5th November, 2008) (ZZEENF+—-AHEBAEZE) T TEA
Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai s R (& S A4 3(100%) N/A N/A
(resigned on 3rd December, 2008) (ZZEZENE+_A=B#) TR TEF
Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen Trevor LB RS- 3(100%) N/A N/A
(resigned on 3rd December, 2008) (ZEZENFE+ZA=ZHET) TNiiE i A
Independent Non-Executive BIAEHITES
Directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry R JR LA 1(100%) N/A 1(100%)
(appointed on 5th November, 2008) (ZZEZENF+—ARBEZT) NERA
Mr. Cui Liguo B FIB A& 1(100%) N/A 1(100%)
(appointed on 5th November, 2008) (Z2ZENEFE+—ARBEZT) TEA
Mr. Zhang Lei RELAE 1(100%) N/A 1(100%)
(appointed on 5th November, 2008) (ZZZENF+—ARBEZT) NERA
Mr. Lee Tho Siem FEREE 3(100%) 2(100%) N/A
(resigned on 3rd December, 2008) (ZZEENF+-A=HET) TEA
Mr. Wang Jianguo TEELEE 1(33%) 1(50%) N/A
(resigned on 3rd December, 2008) (ZZEZENFE+ZA=B#T) TE A
Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam B g MR 1B £ 3(100%) 2(100%) N/A
(resigned on 3rd December, 2008) (ZZEENF+-A=ZHET) TEA
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management E= ke A E R EH N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr. Qiu Jiangang, aged 54, currently serves as the deputy general
manager of CNNC. Mr. Qiu joined CNNC in 1982 and had served as the
director of the Overall Planning Department of CNNC and the assistant to
the general manager of CNNC before his current position. Mr. Qiu has
been the chairman of SUFA Technology Industrial Co., Ltd. CNNC (FP#Zx&k
MR EERHDEBRAF) (stock code: 000777), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since December 2005. Mr. Qiu has over 26
years of experience in the nuclear industry. Mr. Qiu graduated from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1982 with a bachelor degree in nuclear
energy engineering.

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Ruiping, aged 46, currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and a director of China Uranium Corporation Limited.
Mr. Han joined CNNC in 1992 and had served as engineer, senior
engineer of China National Nuclear Corporation ((FEI#Z T %422 7)) (the
predecessor of CNNC) and deputy director of the Nuclear Fuel
Department of CNNC before his current position. Before joining CNNC,
Mr. Han was a trainee researcher of China Institute of Atomic Energy (¥
Bl R FRERIERZERT). Apart from serving CNNC, Mr. Han also served as
the deputy commissioner of the Science and Technology Division of the
Overall Planning Department of Commission of Science, Technology, and
Industry for National Defense of the Peoples’ Republic of China (COSTIND)
during 1998 to 1999 and a researcher of the Science and Technology
Division of the Overall Planning Department of COSTIND during 1999 to
2004. Mr. Han has over 20 years of experience in the nuclear industry.
Mr. Han graduated from Wuhan University in 1986 with a bachelor
degree in Science. He also holds a master degree in management science
and engineering from Harbin Engineering University.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management 2 % K = 4% & I [E f8 /1 (continued 4

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Xu Hongchao, aged 38, currently serves as the Executive Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Xu joined CNNC in 1993 and had served
as the accountant of the finance department of China National Nuclear
Corporation (FEI#Z T %482 7)) (the predecessor of CNNC), the deputy
director of the Assets Management Division of the Investments
Operations Department of CNNC, the director of the Overall Management
Division of the Policy Research and System Reform Department of CNNC
and the director of the Investment Division of the Assets Management
Department of CNNC. Mr. Xu is a director of Sanmen Nuclear Power Co.,
Ltd. (=PIZEBR A7) and a director of SUFA Technology Industrial Co.,
Ltd. CNNC (FZEREHRE ZRMKHBRAF) (stock code: 000777), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu has about 15
years of experience in the areas of project investment, assets
management and securities investment. Mr. Xu graduated from Hengyang
Engineering School in 1993 with a bachelor degree in industrial
management engineering. He also holds a master degree in business
administration from the Tsinghua University. Mr. Xu is also qualified as a
senior accountant.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Mingang, aged 42, currently serves as the deputy general
manager of China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation (FFEIR T8 T 3
‘A/]). Mr. Huang had served as a deputy commissioner, a senior engineer,
a commissioner of the Nuclear Energy Department and the assistant to
the general manager of China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation.
before his current position. Mr. Huang also served as a director of a
department of China Trade Centre Limited in London during 1999 to
2000. Mr. Huang has about 19 years of experience in the nuclear industry.
Mr. Huang graduated from Xi‘an Jiao Tong University in 1989 with a
bachelor degree in engineering. He also holds a master degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University. Mr. Huang has obtained the
professional qualifications of senior engineer (post-graduate level) and
senior international business engineer.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management 2 %= .= 4% & 12 [ 5 /1 (continued )

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry, aged 61, currently serves as an
Executive Director & Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 0001), New World Department Store China Limited (stock
code: 825), SPG Land (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 337), Cheong Kong
Infrastructure Holdings Limited (stock code: 1038), TOM Group Limited
(stock code: 2383), all being companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of Excel
Technology International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8048), a company
listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent
non-executive director of Forefront Group Limited (formerly known as
Forefront International Holdings Limited) a company listed in Hong Kong
and FPP Golden Asia Fund, Inc. (formerly known as Jade Asia Pacific
Fund, Inc.), a company listed in Ireland. Mr. Cheong has over 30 years of
experience in securities industry. He is also a member of the Securities
and Futures Appeals Tribunal and a member of the Disciplinary Panel A of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science (mathematics) degree from Chelsea College, University
of London and a Master of Science (Operational Research and
Management) degree from Imperial College, University of London.

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 39, is currently a partner of Guantao Law Firm, a
law firm in Beijing, PRC. He has been practising law since 1993. Mr. Cui is
also an independent director of UBS SDIC Fund Management Co., Ltd. (E¥
BIERE S EIE AR /A R), an independent non-executive director of APT
Satellite Holdings Limited (stock code: 01045), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, independent director of BI&EE4ER
I BER AT (stock code: 6019189), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and an independent director of SUFA Technology Industry
Co., Ltd. CNNC (& BRI B X BIRAF)) (stock code: 000777), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Cui graduated from
the China University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor degree
in laws in 1991. He also holds a master degree in laws from the same
university.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 39, currently serves as an assistant to the general
manager of Beijing Fuchengmen sales department of Great Wall Securities
Co., Ltd. (EWFEHERELAF]), a company Mr. Zhang joined since
1994. Mr. Zhang has over 14 years of experience in the securities industry.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Renmin University of China in 1996, major in
commercial and economic management. Mr. Zhang holds the qualification
of settlement practitioner granted by Beijing Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management 2 % K = 4% & I [E f8 /1 (continued 4

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Xiaoming, aged 35, currently serves as Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Zhao joined CNNC in 1997 and was appointed as chief
accountant of China Uranium Corporation Limited in 2008. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Renmin University of China in 1993.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai, aged 58, is the Chief Operating Officer of the Die
Casting Division of the Group. Mr. Tsang started to work in the metal
working industry in Hong Kong in 1981. Mr. Tsang was a co-founder of
the Group and joined the Group in 1993. He was an executive director
and chairman of the Group. He resigned as an executive director and
chairman of the Group in December 2008, but remains to serve in the
Die Casting Division of the Group. He is responsible for the strategic
planning and development of the Die Casting Division of the Group. Mr.
Tsang graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Science Degree in 1974. After completion of his Master of Business
Administration Degree in the University of Windsor, Canada, in 1977, Mr.
Tsang joined an international oil company in Hong Kong and gained
valuable experience in corporate planning and finance. Mr. Tsang is a
member of the North American Die Casting Association.

Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor, aged 53, is the President of the Die
Casting Division of the Group. Mr. Kong joined the Group in 2002 and
was an executive director and chief executive officer of the Group. He
resigned as an executive director and chief executive officer of the Group
in December 2008, but remains to serve in the Die Casting Division of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall management of the financial
operation and business development functions of the Die Casting Division
of the Group. Mr. Kong graduated from University of Saskatchewan,
Canada in 1980 with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Kong was the General Manager of InfoChain Express division,
an information technology business unit at Avery Dennison Corporation, a
Fortune 500 US based company, and has over twenty years of
manufacturing management experience. During his past years of
experience, he had successfully deployed several key projects such as
computerization of production system, certification of ISO 9001qualify
system, construction of new 150,000 square feet plant facility and
restructuring of a world class manufacturing team. Mr. Kong is a member
of the North American Die Casting Association.

Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 50, is the Company Secretary and Qualified
Accountant of the Company. Prior to joining the Company in November
2008, he had over 26 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management. Mr. Li is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of
Mr. Liis a
graduate of Imperial College of the University of London and holds a

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Bachelor of Science degree.
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Directors’ Report £ EH&E

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2008.

CHANGE OF NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 7th August, 2008, the name
of the Company was changed from United Metals Holdings Limited £}
BT E AR A7) to CNNC International Limited FRAZEFR AR A7

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2008 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 32.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2008.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$10.2 million and
HK$3.0 million on plant and machinery and construction in progress,
respectively, to expand and upgrade its manufacturing facilities.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, the Company issued 159,168,308 ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each for cash at a price of HK$1.77 per share.

The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respect.

Details of the share capital of the Company is set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTE

During the year, the Company issued convertible note with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$106,200,000. The convertible note was used to
finance the investment of the Group.

Details of the convertible note of the Company are set out in note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2008, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$394.8 million (2007: HK$123.1 million).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive director
Mr. Qiu Jiangang (appointed on 5th November, 2008)
(appointed on 5th November, 2008)

(resigned on 3rd December, 2008)

Mr. Huang Mingang
Mr. Wong Wing Sing

Executive directors
Mr. Han Ruiping (appointed on 5th November, 2008)
Mr. Xu Hongchao (appointed on 5th November, 2008)
Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai (resigned on 3rd December, 2008)
Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen Trevor (resigned on 3rd December, 2008)
Independent non-executive directors

appointed on 5th November, 2008)
appointed on 5th November, 2008)
appointed on 5th November, 2008)

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry
Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Mr. Lee Tho Siem

Mr. Wang Jianguo

resigned on 3rd December, 2008)
resigned on 3rd December, 2008)

o~ o~ o~~~ —~

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam  (resigned on 3rd December, 2008)

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Article of Association, all
directors who were appointed on 5th November, 2008 will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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Directors’ Report & % B & & (continued %)

DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai and Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen Trevor had entered into
service contracts with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing 1st December, 2002. Their service contracts were terminated
upon their resignation. On the same date, Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong,
former directors and existing shareholders of the Company, had entered
into new service agreements with the Company for two years until 3rd
December, 2010. Pursuant to the agreed terms of the service agreements,
each of Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong shall be entitled to a fixed salary of
HK$3,500,000 per annum plus potential 15% profit bonus and 5%
discretionary profit bonus. It is also a term of the service agreements that
both Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong shall guarantee on United Non-Ferrous
(Overseas) Limited and its subsidiaries’ consolidated net asset value of not
less than the sum of HK$189,674,000 as at 3rd December, 2010.
Otherwise, each of Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong should be liable to pay half
of such shortfall to the Group.

Each of the current executive directors and independent non-executive
directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing 5th November, 2008 which shall
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other
party not less than three months prior written notice.

The term of office of each of the current non-executive director is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2008, none of the directors nor their associates had
any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. No option has
been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.
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Directors’ Report & % B & & (continued %)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st December, 2008, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows
that the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the

shares held Company
Name of shareholder Capacity EEHIT GAXEERIT
R A S5 LT@EiHA BAEDI
CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited Corporate interest 284,372,273 75.00%

("CNNC Overseas”)

iz EERER QR (THRZE5 ) NAEfER
China Nuclear International Uranium Corporation Corporate interest 284,372,273 75.00%
B B 4% 58 S ik B R A 3 A A NEEE
China National Nuclear Corporation Corporate interest 284,372,273 75.00%
PEZ TEEE QA DA

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31st December, 2008.
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Directors’ Report & % B3 & & (continued %)

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

None of the directors of the Company or their respective associates have
any interests in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Directors’ Report & % B3 & & (continued %)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2008 except during the period from 3rd December,
2008 to 12th December, 2008. On 3rd December, 2008, following the
close of the general offer by CNNC Overseas, CNNC Overseas and the
persons acting in concert with it were interested in approximately
75.0029% of the issued share capital of the Company. On 12th
December, 2008, following the settlement of the disposal of the shares
of the Company by CNNC Overseas, CNNC Overseas and the persons
acting in concert with it were interested in approximately 74.999% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of a significant event occurring after the balance sheet date are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Qiu Jiangang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9th April, 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report %7 % EiEh 3k & &

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS UNITED METALS HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 32 to 79 which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31st December, 2008 and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2008 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
9th April, 2009
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275 | Consolidated Income Statement #:& Uz &
S . _
Zix | For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE—_FTNF+_A=+—BILFE
©
I
e 2008 2007
Y —_EF)N\E —ETEF
5 NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 BT T BB T
3 2 Revenue W 25 5 209,082 234,919
Cost of sales $HE AR (200,166) (209,638)
Gross profit EF 8,916 25,281
Other income HEab A 6 2,303 1,544
Selling and distribution expenses HENDERY (8,927) (7,975)
Administrative and other expenses 1T R Bt BA S (20,584) (14,534)
Impairment loss on property, plant and  #1% - &= KR & RE
equipment 18 12 — (7,337)
Finance costs BhE Bl AN 7 (2,138) (1,373)
Loss before taxation MR T R ET 48 (20,430) (4,394)
Income tax credit FriSHLE 8 713 38
Loss for the year FREE 9 (19,717) (4,356)
Basic loss per share FREAREIE 11 (GLERARGINGEIMNE (HK2.0 centsi&IL)




Consolidated Balance Sheet #%:

As at 31st December, 2008 R -ZZN\E+-A=+—H

BEER

EF

2008 2007
—EFN\E —EELF
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
BisE BT T BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MK 12 116,004 113,454
Prepaid lease payments A ERIE 13 6,020 6,153
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEDE - BERZHEM
property, plant and equipment ik 14 1,070 3,249
123,094 122,856
Current assets mENE E
Inventories PN 15 38,848 40,983
Trade and other receivables and W E 5 BR N E b JlE W 5k 1B
prepayments LA R T A /08 16 51,081 55,745
Prepaid lease payments i‘E ~NRERE 13 133 133
Available-for-sale investment HHEELE 17 — 1,483
Investments held for trading ?—;1 BEBERE 18 207 543
Taxation recoverable A] Y [B] Fx 18 = 340
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 19 400,150 18,807
490,419 118,034
Current liabilities nBEaE
Trade and other payables and JENTE SR H b B 58
accruals LA X FE BT R 3R 20 30,840
Taxation payable JERT 18 15 84
Unsecured bank loans wholly AR —FANBEEEZ
repayable within one year EIRFARITER 21 16,000 19,334
56,564 50,258
Net current assets RENEEFE 433,855 67,776
Total assets less current BEERTHER
liabilities 556,949 190,632
Non-current liabilities L B =R
Convertible note ERLY S 22 83,284 —
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEE 23 4,025 958
87,309 958
Net assets BEEZFE 469,640 189,674
Capital and reserves BRAERFKE
Share capital A% 72X 24 3,792 2,200
Reserves E% 1% 465,848 187,474
Equity attributable to equity holders QA @#EZRIFAE A
of the Company JE 15 4 7 469,640 189,674
The consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to 79 were approved and 5325798 7 G AWM EHREO R ST AFEN

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9th April, 2009 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Han Ruiping
BT

DIRECTOR
EF

ANBEREERILEREEEL LA T
EERREZREE

s

Xu Hongchao

FTALER

DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #&& & A& &K

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZEZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREHEAER
Investments Non- General  Convertible
Share Share  revaluation distributable  Merger reserve  note equity  Translation  Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserve fund reserves reserve profits Total
%E Ny - THRREE
BE  BROEE EfiftE DiREE  ANHRE  REEE BARE Bk Rt RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETT BETR BT BETT BETT B%Tr BETT BETT BETT BETRn
(Note 24) (Note 25)  (Note 25)  (Note 25)
(ft324) (r325)  (W3Es)  (B3E25)
At 1st January, 2007 i 3
—A—H 2,200 39,352 (62) 16,584 127 6,59 — 4,265 124,027 193,087
Exchange differences arising on BEEEY
translation ERZESR — — — — — — 898 — 898
Gain on fair value changes of an AHEEREATE
available-for-sale-investment LEpAE: — — 45 - — - - - 45
Income recognised directly ERRRARRLZ
in equity WA — — 45 — — — 898 — 943
Loss for the year FRER — — — - — — — — (4,356) (4,356)
Total recognised income for FROHER
the year Nt — — 45 — — — — 898 (4,356) (3413)
Transfer gz — — — — — 408 — — (408) -
At 31st December, 2007 RZBRLHF
+-A=+-H 2,200 39,352 (17) 16,584 127 7,002 — 5,163 119,263 189,674
Exchange differences arising BHEEY
on translation ENZE — — — — — — — 829 — 829
Gain on fair value changes of an THEEREATE
avallable-for-sale investment EEpAE: - — 4 - - - - - — 44
Income recognised directly in equity  EERRAHER
A — — 44 — — — — 829 — 873
Investment revaluation reserve released & B i3 1 &
on disposal EitfEE - — @7) - - - — — — (27)
Loss for the year ERER — — — — — — — — (19,717) (19,717)
Total recognised income (expense) for £ AE HZMA
the year (AR e - - 17 - — — — 829 (19717)  (18871)
Issue of new shares BITHR 1,592 280,136 — — — — — — 281,728
Share issue expenses EIRHFAR — (3,261) — — — - - - - (3,261)
Recognition of equity component of R A RKZE
the convertible note RAHH — — — — — 24,395 - - 24,395
Deferred tax liability on recognition of ~ He32 AR Z % g A
equity component of convertible BAMEERNET
note (note 23) HEBE (f5r23) — — — — — — (4,025) — — (4,025)
Transfer [k — — — — — 204 — — (204) —
At 31st December, 2008 3
+-A=+-8 3,792 316,227 — 16,584 127 7,206 20,370 5,992 99,342 469,640




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &8R4 nE X

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #Z =%

ZENF+HA=+—-RLFE

2008
—EF)N\E
HK$’000
BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXER
Loss before taxation KRR Al &S 18 (20,430)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - HRENEREITE 17,173
Dividend income % B A (30)
Finance costs BB B AN 2,138
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment W BELEERERE =
Interest income FEWA (718)
Loss on written-off of property, plant and equipment MW MELEEZEE 109
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investment HEMJHEEKRE 2 kE (27)
Operating cash flows before movements BRI
in working capital e ﬁ%mui (1,785)
Decrease in inventories FERD 2,135
Decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayments & U & 5 B8R 78 K H fib E U B
LA B T8 R R 6,191
Decrease (increase) in investments held for trading BEEE®RERD (M) 336
Increase (decrease) in trade and FE T & 5 BR 3 % Ho Ath FE - 5RIE
other payables and accruals LA B2 JE 5T R FE 0 CRl ) 7,872
Cash generated from operations KEEBEEAZR® 14,749
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund (paid) RO (A BAFEH 340
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid BT Bt B ERER TR IA (314)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REREXBZREFHR 14,775
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEREH (13,836)
Deposits paid on acquisition of property, WEEME - BB M
plant and equipment EffzE® (1,070)
Interest received B B 718
Dividends received 2R & 30
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES BIEREFHZHREFE (14,158)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬂﬁﬁ@]
Proceed from issue of new shares BATH IR FTIS RIE 281,728
Proceed from issue of convertible note AT R Hx SRIBFTIS IR 106,200
New bank loans raised HMEERTEX 11,000
Repayment of bank loans HER ﬁ%%ﬂ (14,334)
Share issue expenses BATIR DA (3.261)
Interest paid [EENFYPS) (659)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES %E (BE)MEEFHZREFHE 380,674
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReRkRaZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R d ) F 8 381,291
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD &#TH & BRI & S1EY 18,807
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES SNEEEEH LY 52
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD, B4 RBR &% EYHESE

represented by bank balances and cash

R 1T 48 ok 3R S MK

400,150

2007

2T F

HK$'000
BT

—EENEFEFR
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(4,394)

17,294
(30)
1,373
7,337
(236)

21,344
345

1,659
(543)

(1,718)

21,087
(563)
(70)

10,000
(22,132)

(1,373)
(13,505)

(12,846)
31,348
305

18,807
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & Bf 75 3 3% Mt 3T

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE—ZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

CNNC International Limited
FRZBEEERA A

w
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GENERAL

CNNC International Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 25th June, 2002 and its
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 6th January, 2003.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is China Nuclear International Uranium Corporation, which is,
in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China National Nuclear
Corporation (FEI#Z T ZEEAF) (“CNNC”), an entity owned by the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") government (“state-controlled
entities”). The Company’s parent is CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding
Limited (“CNNC Overseas”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to
the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$") for the convenience of the shareholders, as the
Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are die casting and sale of
metal products.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“NEW HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which are or have become
effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(FRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions
HK(FRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B 75 i & B 5 (continued &)
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE—ZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“NEW HKFRSS") (continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the

results and financial position for the current or prior years have been

prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has

been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but are

not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

HK(FRIC) — Int 15

HK(FRIC) — Int 16

HK(FRIC) — Int 17

HK(FRIC) — Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs'

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements®

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation’

Eligile hedged items®

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate?

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combinations®

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments?

Operating Segments?

Embedded Derivatives*

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation®

Distrioution of Non-cash Assets to Owners®

Transfers of Assets from Customers’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009

except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

4 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June, 2009

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008

2.
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CNNC International Limited
FRZBEEERA A

w
08

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“NEW HKFRSSs") (continued)

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October, 2008

7 Effective for transfers on or after 1st July, 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
1st January, 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B 75 i & B 5 (continued &)
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZEZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B 75 i & B 5 (continued &)
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE—ZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in the
course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land and buildings under development for
future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for production or for administrative purposes, the
leasehold land component is classified as a prepaid lease payment and
amortised over a straight-line basis over the lease term. During the
construction period, the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold
land is included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To
the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating leases.

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HEZZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financials statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in
the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 75 i & B 5 (continued &)
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE-ZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related to
depreciable assets are presented as a deduction from the carrying
amount of the relevant asset and are released to income over the
useful lives of the assets. Grants related to expense items are
recognised in the same period as those expenses are charged in the
consolidated income statement and are deducted in reporting the
related expense.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes income
statement items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 75 i & B 5 (continued &)
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE-ZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HEZZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis, other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, of which interest income is
included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
represent financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

J it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets held for trading are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HEZZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are neither
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss nor loans
and receivables. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HEZZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and unsecured
bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible note

Convertible note issued by the Group that contain both the liability and
conversion option components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceed of the
issue of the convertible note and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible note
equity reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

Convertible note (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible note is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible note equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised
in which case the balance stated in convertible note equity reserve will
be transferred to share premium. Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible note equity reserve
will be released to accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible note are
allocated to the liability and conversion option components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
conversion option derivative is charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible note using the effective interest method.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & 81 75 7 2% Mt 5% (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #Z =%

4.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year, are discussed below:

Estimated impairment on property, plant and
equipment

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with reference to its intended use and profit generating
power whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
Appropriate impairment for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit and loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on property, plant and equipment,
the Group takes into consideration the present value of future cash
flow expected to receive. Impairment is recognised as the difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell
(2007: value in use) for the year ended 31st December, 2008. As at
31st December, 2008, the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment is HK$116,004,000 (2007: HK$113,454,000).

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, net of returns and sales related taxes, to outsiders during the
year.

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group's business is currently organised
into four operating divisions which are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Aluminium parts — sale of aluminium die casting parts manufactured
and processed by the Group.

sale of zinc die casting parts manufactured and
processed by the Group and zinc die casting
parts purchased from suppliers but processed
by the Group.

sale of magnesium die casting parts
manufactured and processed by the Group.

sale of screw machined brass parts and other
casting purchased from suppliers but
processed by the Group.

Zinc parts —

Magnesium parts —

Others —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & 81 75 7 2% Mt 5% (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 & & ZNEFE+ A=+ —HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008

=R ERE e

BE_FENE+_A=+—HLEE

Aluminium
parts
SR ER 15
HK$'000
BETT
REVENUE 35 195,110
RESULTS E4
Segment results DEEE (15,250)
Dividend income from AfHERE
available-for-sale 2R EWA
investments
Interest income B U
Unallocated corporate ROBEAFRA
income
Unallocated corporate RO RABAY
expenses
Finance costs A& R
Loss before taxation KRR
Income tax credit ST R
Loss for the year FAER
BALANCE SHEET HEEEER
ASSETS -3
Segment assets DEE E 160,639
Investment held for trading #H{EEERE
Unallocated corporate ADERBIEE
assets
Consolidated total assets ~ 4A& B EME
LIABILITIES =1
Segment liabilities DEEE 33,766
Unsecured bank loan AR—FRBHE

wholly repayable within

one year
Unallocated corporate
liabilities

» BERRER

Consolidated total liabilities

FRERERS

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on written off of
property, plant and
equipment

HihE R

EmE R

ME- BEREREZ
& 16,185

WEME BER
HEZEE

16,500

Zinc  Magnesium

parts parts
AR e
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT

12,647 1,181

(261)

13,259 3,236

Others  Consolidated
Hit &FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

144 209,082

(69) (15,569)

(20,430)
713

(19,717)

177,249
207

436,057
613,513

34,121

143,873

17,218

17,173




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & 81 75 7 2% Mt 5% (continued #5)
TNFEF+-_A=+—BILFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #Z =%

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2007

WHERTEHBER @

BHE_ZETLE+A=+—HLEE

—ETN\EFH
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Aluminium Zinc Magnesium
parts parts parts Others Consolidated
a0 ¢ s HF Hith RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BETT BET T
REVENUE &= 214,129 18,230 2,529 31 234,919
RESULTS E
Segment results DEBEE 4,253 484 80 1 4,818
Dividend income from AEEEREZ
available-for-sale SN ON
investments 30
Interest income s WA 236
Impairment loss on ME - BEREE
property, plant and BREEE
equipment (7,337)
Unallocated corporate VN W/NGILL N
income 1,278
Unallocated corporate N NGB
expenses (2,046)
Finance costs A& R A (1373)
Loss before taxation BRI ET 1B (4,394)
Income tax credit IR ) 38
Loss for the year FAEE (4,356)
BALANCE SHEET BEERE
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEBEE 170,315 13,904 3,582 90 187,891
Available-for-sale AHERE
investments 1,483
Investment held for trading 3 {EEERE 543
Unallocated corporate RAOBRRREE
assets 50,973
Consolidated total assets 4 A BELMEE 240,890
LIABILITIES &R
Segment liabilities DEEE 27,685 205 71 — 27,961
Unsecured bank loans EIEBRITER 19,334
Unallocated corporate APEARAEE
liabilities 3921
Consolidated total liabilities 434 & /2% 51,216
OTHER INFORMATION Hih &
Capital additions 1 ANE AR 20,029 2,027 3,706 — 25,762
Depreciation of property, — ¥1% - BE N&E
plant and equipment ZIE 16,430 499 365 — 17,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZ_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5.

(continued)
Geographical segments

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods:

=R ERE e

it [& 53 &P
AEEEILRTIHE S (Tin & &2 H0R
M) 2 W ST

Sales revenue
by geographical market
EiEDHE SR HEEWE

The PRC =8}
Hong Kong BB
North America M
Europe M
Others Hh

2008 2007
—ze/ s EEEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT T
44,400 45,793
16,275 35,457
68,260 79,574
65,925 62,777
14,222 11,318
209,082 234,919

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets,
and additions to property, plant and equipment, analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

REEMEWRE S ZDHEEREE
IANRWE - BEIRERESTWOT :

Carrying amount of

segment assets

SMEEREE

2008
—ET)\E
HK$'000
BT T

Geographical region I [
The PRC F 133,625
Hong Kong BB 43,624
177,249
OTHER INCOME 6.

187,891

Additions to property,
plant and equipment

Wk BEREBFE
2007 2008 2007
—zztr ERELIEN -z
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
prTr IR  hTT

16,166
1,052

17,218

Included in other income are the followings:

Dividend income from available-for-sale AHEERE ZREBA
investments

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investment

Interest income

HEATHEERE 2 B
A EHA

HitWAERBREATEIE:

H it dt A
2008 2007
SEIVEN —==is
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
30
236




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & 81 75 7 2% Mt 5% (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #Z =%

ZENF+A=+—RLEFE
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MAEMK
2008 2007
—EF)\E ZETLF
HK$000 HK$'000
surr QET ST!
Interest on unsecured bank loans EEIRITERAE 1,373
Effective interest expenses on convertible note AR EE BB
(note 22) MERX (FF5E22) —
1,373
8. INCOME TAX CREDIT 8. FiE#HiKRE
2008 2007
ZET)N\E ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Current tax: ANERRRIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENGEH
Overprovision in previous years M FEEEERE (85)
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hb el AfEmiiIa
Current year REE 257
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBBEREE (185)
72
(13)
Deferred tax (note 23): EAERIE (MH5E23) -
Current year KEE (25)
Effect of change in tax rate MESBHHTE —
(25)
Taxation attributable to the Company AAEMEH B R
and its subsidiaries FE(R IR (38)

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the

Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from 17.5%
to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore,
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing

in the respective jurisdictions.

RZZBEENFERNA-+ B BBELLE
BB -_TTENFRAKHN EZFTEN
S ZETNRBFER BRAFMEH
HEMR175%BIEE165% AL & F
?%%)f&?ﬁﬁ EI65%(ZEZTEF:175%)

s
= H o
Al >+

e 7 A 2 B IE T AR 48 A B A
ERITREE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & B 75 i & B 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE—ZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

8.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC prior to the
year of 2008, Dongguan United Metal Products Co., Ltd. SR8 F A&
HlE@AMR AT (“Dongguan United”), was regarded as a “High and New
Technology enterprise with Foreign Investment” and as an export
oriented production company, while United Castings (Dongguan) Co.,
Ltd. ReeRtiEEBEHmAR AT (“United Castings”) and United Metal
Products (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ﬂﬁ%‘ﬁ%%‘ﬁ'ﬂ (%) BRZAR] (“United
Shanghai”) were regarded as “Production Enterprise with Foreign
Investment established on coastal economic open zones”. Accordingly,
they were subject to a reduced PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 24%
for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on
the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order No. 63 of
the President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the State Council of
the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. Under the
New Law and Implementation regulations, the new PRC Enterprise
Income Tax standard rate was increased to 25% from 1st January, 2008
onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC prior to the
year of 2008, Dongguan United was entitled to a 50% reduction in tax
rate in the year of 2007 as over 70% of Dongguan United’s turnover
was for export purpose. Accordingly, its tax rate for the year of 2007
was 12%.
therefore the tax rate for the year 2008 is 25%.

Under the New Law, such incentive was abolished and

United Castings is entitled to exemption from the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for two years commencing from their first profit-making
year of operation and thereafter, it is entitled to 50% relief from the
PRC Enterprise Income tax for the following three years. Its first profit
making year was 2006. Accordingly, tax relief will expire in the year of
2010. The tax rate for the year of 2008 is 12.5% (2007: 12%).

No provision for taxation has been made for United Shanghai for both
years 2007 and 2008 as the company had no assessable profit for
both years.

8.

BT 15 ﬁ R
RE_SZTNFURPEARER X
B REBNASHmERAR (R=E
MDEE R [RHEMEIIFREDRE]
ﬂﬁﬂi?“ﬂ*ﬁ%%ﬂ%%%ﬂﬁﬁ
AR ((REMBDEMEBSEH @G (£
/@ﬁ@ AIHMELEDARERIR

HEABEERRENIINEREEERE
it RBE—_FTLF+-_HA=1—H

IEFE - BRI E24%[A 4 5 N R
REIBRMEN -

RZZEZEF=A+B ARHEBRFE
AREMBEEFESF639 BHFEAR
/\%uﬂi%ﬁﬁ SERETHBED R
T HF+ZARNA PREBEERBERH
ﬁéiﬂ@?ﬁ@ﬂ%w BE-ZZNF—-H—H

CIRREIBOE B IED R E
ﬁi BRI X FHE25% ©

BEZZSTNFUAAREEBERRE
B AR REERBRE70% 2 EX£EIRE
HE AR 2T FEERE50%H
KA ZRARRZZEZ+LFNREA
2% REFB L BRBBRELER
W_TEN\FHPER25% °

RaRlEa e ERRFER fJERRH
CEMERME-R¥XEZ HE@EE
FEREA-TTNF Al HEBEERH
BR-ZZE—ZEFjEme _ T NF X
B1R5%(ZEZEEF 1 12%)e

HRBEFER_ZEZLFR_TTN
FRILEBRTE N 8ZMFILEH
RARWEHTR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & 81 75 7 2% Mt 53 (continued 45)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZEZE_TENF+_A=+—HIFE

8.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

8. MIBHMEW

AEFERMBHIEKRA
BREATESIEE RO T

Loss before taxation

B 75t A1 &5 18

Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax
rate of 25% (2007: 24%)

Tax effect of income not taxable for

tax purpose
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

tax purpose

LR B EFTE R R25%
(T F:24%):1E

2 BiIE
BERHBWAZHETE

TAMBRAX 2 MB T E

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AEDMEBZRH f% ?/ 2
Effect of tax relief granted to RRARETHER
the Company’s certain subsidiaries 5% MERRZTE
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMRDEER K *g.*
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARARMEZ F 2
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBBEEE
Effect of change in tax rate REEFHHTE
Others H A
Taxation for the year REFEHIE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

9. FWNEIE

Loss for the year has been arrived

at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 10)
Other staff costs

Retirement benefit schemes contributions (note 31)

FRBELME

EEW S (H5E10)
Hi8 Ik
RARAE A ET SR (BT EE31)

Total staff costs

BT AN4E%E

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Less: Amount capitalised in construction

in progress

B 5 12 B FRIR
B R TR REGT

BEARZ A

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as expense
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Net exchange loss
Loss on written-off of property,
plant and equipment
Operating lease charges on land
and buildings
Penalty paid to a construction contractor
in respect of a lawsuit, included in
administrative and other expenses

ZERT &
SRR ZFE XA
ME- BERRBITE

FE 5 5185 5
MM BE R

B R
T REFZ

KEHEER
R—EAEFATMTEE
AEERHENR BIETETRE
HEESRA

59,978

1,016
200,166

AVAVE]
466

109

4,414

8247 A U a3 AR

2007
e
HK$ 000

/a m :F7E

(4,394)

(1,055)

(557)

2,455
429

(1,033)

2007

2T EF

HK$'000
BT IT

5,648
51,421
1,164

58,233
133

(133)

1,018
209,638

17,294
685

—EENEFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZ_ZTZNF+ _A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2007: six)

directors are as follows:

2008

Director’s fee EE2oka
Other emoluments Hih e
Salaries and other R
benefits HingFl
Retirement benefit RKER

scheme
contributions

g

[kt

Total emoluments

Kong

Tsang Cheuk

Han Xu Chiu Luen
Ruiping* Hongchao* Wai**  Trevor**
BI¥* FALBr BmE IR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT EETT B%Tx

2,076

4R A B S R R B 5T (continued )

10. EXRkEEME

ARAA+=E(ZF
EE eGP

TEFRR)E
W

—EFEN\EF
Cheong Loke Yu,
Ying alias Wong
Cui  Zhang Chew Lee Tho Wang Loke Hoi Qiu Huang Wing
Liguo* Lei*  Henry*  Siem** Jianguo**  Lam** Jiangang* Mingang*  Sing** Total
ERE* RE* OREH FHH TRE EEK HEB>  EHEr EkBe £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$S'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BT B¥Tr B%Tr #B%Tn B%Tr B%Trn

2007
Tsang Kong Cheuk
Chiu Luen Lee Loke Yu, alias Wong
Wai Trevor Tho Siem  Wang Jianguo  Loke Hoi Lam Wing Sing Total
BAR(E LEBE EEZ E=acil [ g AR =K EES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Director’s fee ERHE — — 55 55 55 55 220
Other emoluments HivB &
Salaries and other benefits N R H A AR F) 2,453 2,951 — — — — 5,404
Retirement benefit scheme RREFET &R
contributions 12 12 — — — — 24
Total emoluments e 2,465 2,963 55 55 55 55 5,648
* Mr. Han Ruiping, Mr. Xu Hongchao, Mr. Cui Liguo, Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Cheong Ying * BInFa4d FOBEE EFELXE RE

Chew Henry, Mr. Qiu Jiangang and Mr. Huang Mingang were appointed on 5th

November, 2008.

*%

Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai, Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen Trevor, Mr. Lee Tho Siem, Mr. Wang

Jianguo, Mr. Loke Yu and Mr. Wong Wing Sing resigned as directors on 3rd

December, 2008.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two

individuals (2007: two individuals) were directors of the Company

whose emoluments are included in the disclosure set out above. The

emoluments of the remaining three (2007: three) individuals were as

follows:

S RIEHEL BREMEERFEHR ELE
RE-BTN\F+—AAREZRE-

*%

ERELE IBEEE FTEHRAE IR

BEd BEMAEERFEKBELEER T
ZENF+-_A=ZHEEEFHG -

AEBENRARSFMALT EPmE

ZHEE RN EXHE -
BELE: =20

2008
—ET)\&
HK$'000
BT T

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit schemes contributions

3 BN & H A 42 R
RARAR R IR

ARREE KF
Hep=% AL (=

W

2007

HK$:000
AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & B 75 i & B 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZ_ZTZNF+ _A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

1.

EMOLU MENTS (continued)

10. EEREEMNE

2008 2007
—EFN\E —ETLF
No. of No. of
individuals individuals

EEAH BEAH

Emoluments of the employees were within the EEME N TH4EH :

following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 7% #1,000,0007T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the year.

FRN AEETEATAEELRLERD
AL (BREFENEER) A EMA B
T ERMATERRMARKHNESH
BEREE TREEHMERFAREL
< o

LOSS PER SHARE 1. 8RRiEE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the ordinary ARG EBRESZHAARGETRER
equity holders of the Company is based on the following data: BB TRE T Y8R E -
2008 2007
—ET)N\EF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss for the purposes of FTEEREXREERN
basic loss per share &5 (4,356)
2007
ZETLF
‘000
F &
Number of shares i &8
Weighted average number of ordinary TEEREARAEEN
shares for the purposes of LR A g &
basic loss per share 244,856 220,000

No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st December, 2008 is
presented as the conversion of convertible note would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st December, 2007 is
presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

MR ERA S RREA NS RERR
BT EZINBE_ZEENF+ A
=T HALEFENEREEEE-

MRERE-TTEET-A=T AL
FELMBTAEERTAEHEBR
B R 2 5 S RS A

—EENEFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & B 75 i & B 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. Y% BEERK

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
Bt RE
BF HEWERE BERR R RE EEIR CES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
CcoSsT KA
At 1st January, 2007 N_ZETLF
—A—B 3,620 11,650 134,942 11,811 1,356 23,251 186,630
Exchange realignment [EE 5 2 95 125 1,492 357 38 — 2,107
Transfer iR — — 942 — — (942) —
Additions NE — 2,263 12,088 2,589 — 8,822 25,762
Written-offs i — (875) — — — — (875)
At 31st December, 2007 RZTT+LF
+-—A=+—8 3,715 13,163 149,464 14,757 1,394 31,131 213,624
Exchange realignment [ 5, & 156 343 3,451 587 63 — 4,600
Additions NE — 2,596 10,169 1,438 — 3,015 17,218
Written-offs 88 — — (141) — — — (141)
At 31st December, 2008 RZZTNF
+=—A=+—H” 3,871 16,102 162,943 16,782 1,457 34,146 235,301
DEPRECIATION AND 8 R E
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January, 2007 RZZETLHF
—HA—B 2,334 7,205 56,960 7,070 1,129 — 74,698
Exchange realignment [ 5, & 80 116 1,195 291 34 — 1,716
Provided for the year FEFE 430 2,885 12,026 1,887 66 — 17,294
Impairment loss recognised Uy 25 & e 3R &
in the income statement BIEEE — — — — — 7,337 7,337
Eliminated on written-offs — Ji 44 B %5 4 — (875) — — — — (875)
At 31st December, 2007 R-ZTBTLF
+-A=+—8 2,844 9,331 70,181 9,248 1,229 7,337 100,170
Exchange realignment [ 5, 3 & 14 242 1,162 424 44 — 1,986
Provided for the year FEE 307 2,067 12,669 2,075 55 — 17,173
Eliminated on written-offs — #ifl 4% s %4 884 — — (32) — — — (32
At 31st December, 2008 RZZTNF
+=—A=+—H” 3,265 11,640 83,980 11,747 1,328 7,337 119,297
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31st December, 2008 RZZTNF
+=ZA=+—H” 606 4,462 78,963 5,035 129 26,809 116,004
At 31st December, 2007 N_TTLF
+=—A=+—H” 871 3,832 79,283 5,509 165 23,794 113,454

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than

construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated useful

lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value on

BREZTRIN LilimE BMELREBR
oA A S AT R AR AT

EDER: 4L

RABE AEREEUATFERFER

a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: &

Buildings Over the term of the leases, or 20 years, B=F 108 F 5205
whichever is the shorter (B & B%E)

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases, or 5 years, THEMEEE FHE F Hi55F
whichever is the shorter (AR EAE)

Plant and machinery 9% B 5 I i 2% 9%

Furniture, fixtures and

equipment
Motor vehicles

18% — 25%

18% — 25%

B RERKE

18% — 25%

18% — 25%



12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

In respect of the alleged breach of contractual undertakings of several
construction contracts, a subsidiary has been named as a defendant in
a District Court action in the PRC during the year ended 31st
December, 2007. Accordingly, all construction costs in dispute of
approximately HK$2,080,000 were accrued in the consolidated balance
sheet while relevant legal expenses approximately HK$150,000 were
charged to the consolidated income statement during the year ended
31st December, 2007.

This also resulted in a significant delay in the completion date of the
new factory premises. The directors of the Company conducted an
impairment review in respect of the Group’s construction in progress as
at 31st December, 2007. A number of the relevant assets were
determined to be impaired. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$7,337,000 was recognised during the year ended
31st December, 2007 based on value-in-use calculation.

In 2008, the District Court in the PRC ruled in favour of the plaintiff.
The subsidiary and its legal counsel appealed to the Intermediate Court
in the PRC but the Intermediate Court in the PRC still ruled in favour of
the plaintiff. Accordingly, additional construction costs of approximately
HK$2,661,000 in dispute were accrued in the consolidated balance
sheet; while additional penalties of approximately HK$1,704,000 and
additional legal expenses of approximately HK$198,000 were charged
to the consolidated income statement during the year. The judgement
from the Intermediate Court is considered final.

The directors of the Company conducted another impairment review in
respect of the Group’s construction in progress as at 31st December,
2008. The fair value of the Group’s construction in progress at 31st
December, 2008 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Greater China Appraisal Limited (“Greater
China"), independent qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group. Greater China are members of the Institute of Valuers, and
have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. With reference to the
valuation arrived at by Greater China, the recoverable amount based on
the fair value less costs to sell basis is higher than the relevant carrying
amount as at 31st December, 2008. As such, no further impairment
has been recognised.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & B 75 i & B 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE—ZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

12. % BB REE

HMRBIEERETIRADZAHAE:
—XMBRAAREBEE_ZZT+LF+=A
T —HIEFEEREM A AR —ER
MR A EAN Bl FER2E2BT
T2k AN 4975 52,080,000 R A BE &
BEEANRFT MEBEZEEROEE
150000t R E &2 T T+ F+ = A
=+ —HIEFERE RERANIR -

ZEHENEFH IBBE 2R T BEHH
BEALEH AQRREER_TTLHF
+Z A=+ —HBRAEEZERIREE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ=o“$m%ﬁﬁamﬂﬁ 23]
b BEEHRENE HE_ZT+F
+_ﬂ:+—5¢¢EEﬁmZﬁﬁ%
1B #7785 %7,337,0007T °

KRBT NE PR AR HRRS A
e BRI REAEBEMmPES
FAREBTIRE E5F EPEARARE
BRADFIRIERS ABF Bt FHP2HE
AN T 32 B 28 49 75 62,661,000 A 4R A
EAaBEXRPRHN MENIT OB
1,704,000 R BN E R B RO A K
198,0007C X FF A FE 4r & W an =R AW HI B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & B 75 i & B 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZ_ZTZNF+ _A=+—HIFE

13.

14.

15.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent payments for medium-
term land use right in the PRC.

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

13.

BHEEMNE
AR B RE SRR ED BT
St 58 PR P 1 3008

Current asset
Non-current asset

2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
kRl tTT
133

6,153

6,286

Note: The amount had been reduced by a government grant of approximately

HK$8,335,000 in the form of deduction of consideration paid in respect of the land
use right acquired by the Group in a prior year, details of which are set out in note
32.

Prepaid lease payments are amortised over the term of the land use
right of 50 years on a straight-line basis.

The amount represents the rights to use the land (the “Land Use
Right”) in the PRC acquired by the Group. While the Group has paid
the full purchase consideration, the relevant government authorities
have not granted formal title to the Land Use Right to the Group. In
the opinion of the directors, the absence of formal title to the Land
Use Right does not impair the value of the relevant properties to the
Group. The directors also believe that formal title to the Land use right
will be granted to the Group in due course.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The deposits were paid by the Group in connection with the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment for production facilities in the PRC.
Additional amounts committed are shown as capital commitments in
note 29.

INVENTORIES

14.

15.

MFE: %24 5 E 445 %8,3350000T 2 BT # B &

L TARRAEEREFRKE L
=R R ERIR - BRI 32

BNEERBETLNERE IR AR
Z G EASOF B 8H -

ZECREASEMBRBOTELIE
RE(LLERE]D BEAREEER
XATREBHE - B BERA B ERE A
SERHtEREIEAXE - EF
RE WARB LM ERAEZ EXER
TEEYAEEFBEMELRBE E
ENEE AEEBEREERRER L
HlE A E -

IWEWE - BERERES
Hzal&

A E 2 5T % T B fr B e
TWE BERR R E R
S0 I S B RN 20 A RS -

Raw materials R
Work-in-progress paak T
Finished goods 2K on

A&
F&

2008 2007

—zz) 5 LIS

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T T

7.712 13,156

17,175 14,258

13,961 13,569

38,848 40,983
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & 81 75 7 2% Mt 53 (continued 45)
TNFEF+-_A=+—BILEE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 16. BN E 5 BR 7k & H i FE UX

PREPAYMENTS AR IE T FIE
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables EUE ZBR K 44,049 50,993
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE — —
44,049 50,993

Other receivables H b 8 SRR

Deposits paid BENET® 3,973 2,540
Others Hib 2,184 1,259
6,157 3,799
Prepayments TEHFUA 875 953
51,081 55,745

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 90 days to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the
balance sheet date:

AEBEKTHE HRFPBZ0HENEE
A it E

0 to 30 days 0H £30H
31 to 60 days 31H £260H
61 to 90 days 61H £90H
91 to 120 days 91H £120H
Over 120 days 8 181206

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will understand the
potential customer's credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Credit
limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.

At both balance sheet dates, the directors considered that trade
receivables which are neither past due nor impaired are of good credit
quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$12,874,000 (2007: HK$8,881,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

o A BrzREWKESERERD N
mr

2007

—ETF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BEET T

15,821 30,133

15,999 11,979

6,070 5,383

4,036 2,757

2,123 741

44,049 50,993
EEMNTEPZA NEBB TREER

PZEEBERIREEEARE - A%
EmAEAERFERLENTPELER
HE - RTEPHNEAREEHEZ

RREEENGEER EFER 45 KBH
RitEREZERESEREERTZ
EEEZ%-

REEBE REEMEWE S RRATE
2 A H A B E E &% #512,874,0007T (=
T T+ 4F ¢ 5 #8,881,0007T ) K [iE Uk 7k 18
Bai BEEWRIRABEEER A%
EYZERE T HAEMNERD-

—EENEFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & 81 75 7 2% Mt 53 (continued 45)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZEZE_TENF+_A=+—HIFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 16. FEURE 5 B X & H fth FEUX
PREPAYMENTS (continued) :Eh IE L;L & E 171- a—':hi IE %)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired EEBBERTUREBZERESDERZ
E‘Elﬁv
2008 2007
ZEF)N\E ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETIT
31 to 60 days 31H 260H 6,022
61 to 90 days 61H £90H 2,892
91 to 120 days 91H £ 120H 2,546
Over 120 days 8331208 1,058
Total 48 =t 12,518
The directors consider trade receivables which are past due but not EERA CEBERTUREZEK
impaired are of good credit quality. Satisfactory settlements were EHREARHZEEERZ - REE
received subsequent to the balance sheet date. HEMBEEIHERS AmE -
Trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies other TXHINNEBEBERE 2 EE I
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out N2 EEINBEZRIEZFERER LK HEAE
below: WK IE
RMB uss$ Euro
AR ESH EX 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BET T BETIT
As at 31st December, 2008 RZZEENF+_A=+—H 302 2,444 41
As at 31st December, 2007 R-EZELF+-_A=+—H 47 3,996 1,471
17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 17. Tt HERE
Available-for-sale investment comprises: AHHERE B
2008 2007
—EFEN\E —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT
Unlisted investment fund ELETREES 1,483

As at 31st December, 2007, the available-for-sale investment is stated
at fair value. Fair value of this investment has been determined by
reference to prices quoted by the counterparty financial institution.

The available-for-sale investment matured on 28th December, 2008 and
reclassified to other receivables upon maturity. The consideration on
redemption of the investment of approximately HK$1,527,000 was
received subsequent to the balance sheet date.

—ETEFEF_A=1T—H AHHE
KREDBAFEIK ZBRREZRF
RE2ZHFHEREBARERR

AHHERENR _ZEENE+ A
—t+NH IJHE WREFREFHEAE
WA IB REZER®% CUEER R
éfﬁ’ﬂfﬂa%’ﬂ,aﬁ%1,527,0007zo
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18. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

B 75 3 % B 3T (continued )

ZENF+HA=+—RLEFE

18. #EE

BEHRE

Investments held for trading comprise:

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

FIFEERERR:
RER LR AE S

—EENEFEFR
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2008 2007
—zz)x QEETINS
HK$'000 HK$'000

T swre |03
543

The fair values of the above investments held for trading are
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on the

Stock Exchange.

19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.05%

to 1.22% (2007: 0.01% to 4.86%) per annum.

Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than functional

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

LRFIEEBEREZ A FETIRE XM
PR 5 B EE

19. SRITEBRREE

R1T 4 ﬁ%%ﬁiﬂ?ooﬂiuzr(:gg
+ F 0012 2486E) 2 ™ 3% F 5 X
B

TXEHNABHEEBERE ZNEEER N
SNz BEETIE Z IR1TE

RMB us$ Yen Euro

AR# EP HE BX T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT BEET T

As at 31st December, 2008 RA-_ZTENF+_A=+—H 98 1,754 13 615
As at 31st December, 2007 WN-ZTEZ+F+-HF=+—H 340 7,103 1,551 1,217
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5F (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZEZ_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 20. EFNESRMEEMES

(@)
N

ACCRUALS MIEA R FERF R
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance REEAZENESEREFER AT
sheet date:
2008 2007
—FF)N\E ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade payables FERTE BERE
0 to 30 days OH &=30H 10,456 6,514
31 to 60 days 31H £60H 872 2,005
61 to 90 days 61H £90H 352 437
91 to 120 days 91H £120H 17 222
Over 120 days HiE120H 289 688
11,986 9,866
Other payables H h & 5118
Accruals fEzt R K 12,354 11,930
Other payables H b B FRIB 12,094 5,555
Deposits received 2T & 4,115 3,489
28,563 20,974
40,549 30,840

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 60 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to monitor the credit
quality of these trade payable.

Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

BEERNFHEEHREOR - KEEE
HEMBRBREEREK ENEEZSE
ENEZHEZEEER-

T XCB 5 A D o A 1) B
SN2 1M B 2 BB B 50 SR 4
f50E -

RMB Us$ Euro

AR ESH BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T

As at 31st December, 2008 RZEZENF+=-_A=+—H — 807 771
As at 31st December, 2007 N-_EEL+FE+_A=+—8 2,234 1,176 951
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #Z =%

21.

22.

UNSECURED BANK LOANS WHOLLY
REPAYABLE WITHIN ONE YEAR

The unsecured bank loans comprise:

ZENFE+A=1+—RLFE

BAR—FNEHEEZE
?EHEF@E ITE

ERMIRITERERE

—EEN\EFH

Annual Report 2008

Carrying amount

Floating-rate borrowings: ZEEE:
HIBOR + 0.45%" BBRITRIZENE + 045FE0
LIBOR + 0.8%% RMBERITRIZE RS + 0.8E@

R 1
2008 2007
SELIEN ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT R
10,000

9,334

16,000 19,334

(” Repayable at the end of each interest period. Amount repaid may be redrawn
immediately. The intervals of each interest period vary from one to three months.

@ This unsecured bank loan was fully repaid during the year.

The average effective interest rate of the Group’s unsecured bank loans
is 3.2% (2007: 5.5%) per annum.

Included in the unsecured bank loans is a bank loan of HK$16,000,000
(2007: HK$10,000,000) which is denominated in currency other than
functional currency of the relevant group entity.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

The Company issued a 2% unsecured convertible note to a substantial
shareholder of the Company, with principal amount of HK$106,200,000
on 5th November, 2008. On the same date, a supplementary
agreement was entered into between the Company and the noteholder
that the amount to be paid on the maturity day will be fixed at
US$13,702,000 and the note interest will be settled quarterly in fixed
amounts of US$68,512. The convertible note entitles the holder to
convert it, in whole or in part of the principal amount, into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time prior to seven business days
preceding the maturity date on 4th November, 2011, at the conversion
price of HK$1.77 per share (equivalent to US$0.23 per share), subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments. If the convertible note has not been
converted, it will be redeemed at par on 4th November, 2011.

At 31st December, 2008, the effective interest rate of the liability
components of the convertible note is 11.58%.

22.

o BREFNSEHAREE - BEEEKENINE
IR E e & A S H BEZFWHEHM% mAzxE
=f@A-

@ BEMARTEFONFABEEE-

AREFzEEFRETER 2 ERFYFE
%IJTJ%ZE(_?ZEJ:i :55[E )

IR IRTT B B 1545 1%16,000,0007T (=
T T+ F B #10,000,0000T ) Z SR ITE
FeZEFBADAEBEEEEREE
B AN 2 Hofth B ¥ 5 1A -

CIE: Y

RZZEZNF+—ARH ARAIRAHEE
% B 3% 17 AN & 58 % #5106,200,0007T &Y
2% AI MR R E - AR ARQ A H
—T—Tfé%‘ﬁj\ﬂi%ﬁﬁﬁf Hﬂa‘A B IR

;EZ%68,512%75° E&Tﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%&%ﬁﬁﬁ?'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5F (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE—ZTNF+ A=+ —HILFE

22. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)

The movement of the liability component of the convertible note for
the year is set out as below:

22, AR E R @)
AR EBEEEISHRAFEZ
R

% 8

Liability
component
afEBGe
HK$'000
BETT
As at 1st January, 2008 R_EBEEZNF—H—H —
Issued during the year RERETT 81,805
Interest charge FEXH 1,479
As at 31st December, 2008 RZZEZNE+ZA=+—H 83,284
23. DEFERRED TAX 23. IEEHIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets EHAZEIEELEHIBEBEREENR
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years: RIBITRATEEZEEHHT
Accelerated
tax Convertible
depreciation Tax losses note Total
TEBRERE HEBE TRERE k3

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT ABTT ABTT ABTRT

At 1st January, 2007 R-_ZEZt+F—-H—H 2,881 (1,898) — 983
(Credited) charged to the consolidated 7 R4: 4 Yzt &
income statement for the year Gt A) KB (219) 194 — (25)
At 31st December, 2007 RZETTLF
+ZA=+-—H 2,662 (1,704) — 958
(Credited) charged to the consolidated R FEAN4EA W&
income statement for the year Gt A )k (2,510) 1,607 — (903)
Charged to equity PR A0BR — — 4,025 4,025
Effect of change in tax rate GRSkl (152) 97 — (55)
At 31st December, 2008 R-ZTTNF
+ZA=+—H — — 4,025 4,025

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$8,054,000 (2007: HK$12,316,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised as at
31st December, 2007 in respect of approximately HK$9,734,000 (2008:
Nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$8,054,000 (2007:
HK$2,582,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits streams.
Unrecognised tax losses of HK$3,948,000 (2007: HK$1,678,000) will
gradually expire from 2009 to 2013 (2007: from 2009 to 2012). The
remainings may be carried forward indefinitely.

REER AEBH AR AN ER

#8

#8,054,0007C (ZEZT L4 - /%’5512 316,000

) AREHEBREN  R_FF

+F

TZA=T-"B HZEBERENEE

9,734,0007T (Z = Z )\ & : ) R IR LT
BEE - MR TEETER B %% FIRR - &
I 4 k8 T B RS I8 8% 168,054,0007T (=
T4 B HE2,582,0007T ) FE SRR TR 1B
BE ﬂiﬁEp VR 7 518 5 #53,948,0005T (=
TELF 167800070 ) BN —ZEE A,
i;"é*%—*i(_;ﬁti HZZZT
NEEZT—ZF)RIXB B 2 TR
BB R Hp At ad o
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4R A B S R R B 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZEZ_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had deductible temporary REEBR AEE 2N E K ERE

24,

differences of approximately HK$7,337,000 (2007: HK$7,337,000). No
deferred tax asset had been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be

23. IE B IE o)

478 #7337,000m (ZEELF B
7,337,0007T ) © A B 18 BUAS FE SR A g A
IS AT R B R = A A se E T K
MU ERZEANAEREERRAEL

utilised. HRIBEE-
SHARE CAPITAL 24, Bg 7
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
LTEBEHE &8

2008 2007
SEEIRN s

HK$°000 HK$'000
BT ok e
Ordinary shares of TR EEBEEE0.01TH
HK$0.01 each I
Authorised: JETE
At 1st January and R—A—BRK
31st December +—-A=+—H 1,000,000 1,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRARE
At 1st January m—H—H 220,000 220,000 2,200
Issue of new shares (note) BEITHTRR (M9 5E) 159,168
At 31st December Rt+t-—A=+—8” 379,168 220,000 2,200
Note:  On 4th June, 2008, a conditional subscription agreement was entered into between fzsr: R-ZZENFESNANB AQFHETFTERE

the Company and CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company, to subscribe 159,168,308 new shares of HK$0.01 each

in the Company at a price of HK$1.77 per share. The transaction was completed on

5th November, 2008.

RAZEIN IR AR A AR A K1 RE
W UEREBEBII77TIHNEBRBARARAR
159,168,308% & A% [ 8 745 #50.017T B 1 iR 15 ©
ZEXGEOR =TT N\F+—ARAREK-

—EENEFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZEZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

25.

26.

RESERVES

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount of the
share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a group
reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

The merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) are required
to maintain a general reserve fund which is non-distributable.
Appropriations to this reserve fund are made out of profit for the year
of the PRC subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial statements which are
prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the PRC. The amount and allocation basis are decided by
the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries annually and is not less
than 10% of the profit for the year of the PRC subsidiaries for that
year. The general reserve fund can be used for expanding the capital
base of the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for
a period of ten years commencing from 11th December, 2002 pursuant
to a written resolution of all shareholders passed on 11th December,
2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
directors and eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may
grant options to eligible employees and directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to outside
eligible advisors and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at
the discretion of its board of directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme is
subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company from time to
time;

25.

26.

4R A B S R R B 5T (continued )
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZEZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

26.

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(ii) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option scheme is
not permitted to exceed 22,000,000 shares, representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at 6th January, 2003;
and

(i) the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of such grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company and will be at least the higher of (i) the average of the
closing prices of the ordinary shares of the Company for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (ii) the
closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company on the date of the
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the
Company.

Any options granted under the Scheme must be exercised during such
option period as may be determined and notified by the directors of
the Company, which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure its subsidiaries will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
unsecured bank loan wholly repayable within one year and convertible
note, and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising share capital, share premium, investments revaluation
reserve, non-distributable reserve, merger reserve, general reserve fund,
convertible note equity reserve, translation reserve and accumulated
profits as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

26.

27.

4R A B S R R B 5T (continued )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B 75 i & B 5 (continued &)
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZEZE_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE

27.

28.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure annually. As
part of this review, the directors of the Company assess the annual
budget prepared by management of the Company. Based on the
proposed annual budget, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
directors of the Company also balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues of the proposed
floatation of the Company as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27.

28.

BEAREREIRE @

KR EEBFEHNELREE-EA L
Bz D RRARESFSHARNAER
EREsFEBEETTGH REEZS
FEEE ARIEEFZEEARAR
HEFEERAFHEORK - R RAFESEITN
BRENEE  ERARR EWETH
EREBETHESNEBLQEEESUFE
HERREEARERE-

EMI A

(a) Categories of financial instruments () €I EZHES
2008 2007
—EFEN\E —EETLF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Financial assets EREE
Fair value through profit or loss AT EFAER 207 543
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERLERZE (BEREe R
cash equivalents) BEZEEY) 450,356 73,599
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE — 1,483
Financial liabilities EREE
Amortised cost B8 AR A 122,648 34,751

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, investments held for
trading, bank balances, trade and other payables, unsecured
bank loans wholly repayable within one year and convertible
note. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

(b) %5 JE by & 1B B AR R BUR
AEBZIZSRMIABETHE
ERE BWE SRR N EMER
RE FEEERE RIT&HK
ENESEAREMENFE A
R—FRNBHREEZBERRITE
REABMERE ZSEMTAZ
FHBERE M ERE - T XETIZ
EFE R T AR R & A &R R
ZHR EREEELEZEEHRE
B DAREIR BB RS 2 B BUREVE 2
I



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & 81 75 7 2% Mt 53 (continued 45)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZEZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCiES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure
to perform their obligations as at 31st December, 2008 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group only extends credit to customers based upon careful
evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions and credit
history.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Group consider that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts and concentration risk is
minimal.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 50% of the total
trade receivables as at 31st December, 2008 (2007: 49%) was
due from the Group’s five largest customers, respectively. Those
five largest customers are reputable electrical appliance company,
automotive traders and agents with long business history with
the Group. Management perform periodic evaluations and
customer visits to ensure the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. The historical experience in the collection of trade
receivables from the five largest customers falls within the
expectation of the directors.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

28. M T B w
(b) MHEAKREEBERBKR

()

=904
AEEZFECREEBREREKE
SERREMEBKIBEUARE SR
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REaEEARRIIRZZEEARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILLFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk management

While most of the Group’s operations are transacted in the
functional currencies on the respective group entities, the
Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group currently has not formulated
any hedging policies against its exposure to currency risk.
Yet, the Group still manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency

rate.

The carrying amount of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at

28. R T B
(b) MHBEAKREEBEZERBER

()

15 A B

(1) S 7 B HE
BERSEEEEmMS &
EBEARHDEBTIANNEE
BiET AEEETET
AN ER H KREEIR
R i3 = =g s e e
MR E A NEEH
1735 48 0 B 1 o
FEREHEINE R R -

AEBENIIEFEZEREE
ENEBBERGEERZE

the balance sheet dates are as follow: EEWNT :
RMB us$ Yen Euro
AR#E EP H B T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT
As at 31st December, 2008 RZEZNF
t-A=t+—H
Assets BE 400 4,198 13 1,026
Liabilities afE — 807 — 771
As at 31st December, 2007 RZEZLF
+-A=+—H
Assets BE 387 11,099 1,551 2,688
Liabilities =k 2,234 10,510 — 951

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure as
stated above and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure should the need arises.

EEEGER DAMINERKR -
W7 FERE B BN
Rk -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILLFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCiES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in
foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Management
considers the Group does not expose to significant foreign
currency risk as majority of its transactions are
denominated in functional currency of the Group's
subsidiaries. US$ financial assets and financial liabilities are
mainly held by a subsidiary of the Company using HK$ as
its functional currency. Since HK$ is pegged to US$,
relevant foreign currency risk is minimal. Except US$, there
were only insignificant balances of financial assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the balance
sheet dates as disclosed above. A reasonably possible
increase or decrease in foreign exchange rate of functional
currencies against relevant foreign currencies would not
have a significant effect on the consolidated income
statement of the Group.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its bank balances, unsecured bank loans
and convertible note. Bank balances and unsecured bank
loans at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk, while the convertible note expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details of the
Group’s bank balances, unsecured bank loans and
convertible note are disclosed in notes 19, 21 and 22,
respectively.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arises.

4R A B SRR B 5T (continued )

28. M T B w
(b) MHEAKREEBERBKR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & B4 75 7 2% Mt 53 (continued 45)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #Z =%

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCiES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank balances
and bank loans at the balance sheet date. For variable-
rate bank balances, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year ended 31st December, 2008 would decrease/
increase by HK$1,902,000 (2007: increase/decrease by
HK$43,000).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and

maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate

by management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate

the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors

the utilisation of borrowings.

ZENFE+A=1+—RLFE

28. M T B w
(b) MHEAKREEBERBKR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & B4 75 7 2% Mt 53 (continued 45)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZE-ZTZ

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(c)

pOliCiES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail Group’s contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required

NEFE+ZA=+—-HIEFE

28. M T B w
MHEAREEBERBKR

(b)

(&)

HEEE AR (F)

TRFNAEBERTESRAEBZ
AHHRB R ZEREIBREAR
EERAWEREESHEBE LR
PRz HABERBBERERE
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to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. ERl ZEXKREEMNBE LRSI
EME°
Weighted
average Total Total
interest 0to 31to 61 to undiscounted carrying
rate 30 days 60 days 365 days  1-5 years cash flows amount
g AR
TigHE 0Z30H 31Z60H  61Z365H 1258 H@RENE KRELHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BT A%Fr BTt B%Tr BETT  BETR
As at 31st December, 2008 RZZZNF
+=ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables ERESRHRR
Hoth AT HR — 14,881 8,388 95 — 23,364 23,364
Unsecured bank loans wholly repayable BR—FRNEHEEZ
within one year EERBTER 32 16,325 — — — 16,325 16,000
Convertible note AR ERE 20 — 531 1,593 110,448 112,572 83,284
31,206 8,919 1,688 110,448 152,261 122,648
As at 31st December, 2007 RZZF+F
t=A=t+-R
Trade and other payables B8 55 %”\ &
H ot AR - 12,391 3,026 — — 15,417 15,417
Unsecured bank loans wholly repayable BN — i?\]*%ﬁ( BEZ
within one year EIXBETER 55 — 19,492 — — 19,492 19,334
12,391 22,518 — — 34,909 34,751
Fair value (0 AFEHE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;
and

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.

THEENTMBBZATEESE

-

BEEREGRR GG RAE
BREmEEECMEE
N2EMBTISEEREET
ATE: R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZ_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

29. EARIKRIE

2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T PR T
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of RBBE - BELEEN
property, plant and equipment: NG
Authorised but not contract for in the EREERTORRR
consolidated financial statements RE TS MRS —
Contracted for but not provided in the ERTHERN A BB RE
consolidated financial statements B 29,701

18,000 29,701

30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for rented premises which fall due as follows:

30.

REHERIE

REFR AREREEEEDET I
TARBEEEE R THFHIBE
2R ERA%BERERERENT ;

2008 2007

—EFN\E —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T ok e

Within one year —F R 3,632
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF (BREEEWE) m 9,028

-W:I 12,660

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises and factory land and buildings. The
average lease term is 3 years. Rentals are fixed and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated in a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all its
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held

31.

separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contributions are available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

31.

REBEFAREAEEREETHAE
MEUAEBEL W REFENESR - F
HHEFHAF - HEEE BER
SRS RET LA & Bk
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BEEMAECEREESE —HAFER
Eestdl (BESHE ) BB ER
Bog il A TE & F B Ol 2 fl 1R TR
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BB ZEFEAZN BXREENESDH
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HER AEER R E A EEM—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZ_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE

31.

32.

33.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continueq)

The Group is also required to make contributions to state-management
retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC government based on
a certain percentage of the monthly payroll costs of the employees of
Dongguan United, Everhope Industrial Limited (“Everhope”) and United
Castings. The Group has no other obligations under the state-
management retirement benefit schemes in the PRC other than the
contribution payable.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to the

relevant retirement benefit schemes are as follows:

31.

BABEAE @

AEENBERPEBATEHOBEEGRIN
58 BRREEBF EBEEERAF
TE®RDERE=REREAFKNANE
FEOE (EHER AEERTEZRE
FREMBE A RKS B LRI
EREMmEREE-

.
A

FA- RNEEFLE BRI 8RR 81 H) 43R
BEWT

MPF Scheme
State-management retirement benefit schemes

BB TR 2

BB RS E

2008 2007
—ee)\s SR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T
215 183

1,005

1,188

GOVERNMENT GRANT

During the year ended 31st December, 2005, the Group received a
government grant of approximately HK$8,335,000 in relation to a piece
of land use right situated in the PRC acquired by the Group during that
year. The amount has been deducted from the carrying amount of the
prepaid lease payments as set out in note 13. The amount is
transferred to income in the form of reduced amortisation charge over
the term of the prepaid lease payments. This policy has resulted in a
credit to income in the current period of HK$167,000 (2007:
HK$167,000). As at 31st December, 2008, an amount of HK$7,737,000
(2007: HK$7,904,000) remains to be amortised.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
() Remuneration of directors and other

members of key management
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

32.

33.

BT 8 Bh &
HE-_TTRF+_A=+—HILFE"
REERERFANBAMCRPBE—IE+
W FARERRFHEDSOEE
8,335,0007T ° WM FE13FT 8L ZEHED
BRENAERBEETMENR Z£XE
FATE A A8 & 3B 2 FE S A P DA H0 R 4
STz ARNEBERA  HBREHE
#167,0007T (= T & £ 4 1 /& 167,000
TP ARERKRA - RZZEENEFE+ =
A=+—8 #¥7737000C (ZEZ+
& 1 #57,904,0007T ) 14 A 2 44

SRR
RKEER

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

BEREANLTHE
() EEREMEFEETERER
ExM&
FNEERHEMEFZERENE Z
BT
2008 2007
—EE)N\E e
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
7,661
36

_ 7,697
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZE_ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILLFE

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
() Remuneration of directors and other

members of key management (continued)

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

On 3rd December, 2008, Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai and Mr. Kong
Cheuk Luen Trevor, former directors and existing shareholders of
the Company, had entered into new service agreements with the
Company for two years until 3rd December, 2010. Pursuant to
the agreed terms of the service agreements, each of Mr. Tsang
and Mr. Kong shall be entitled to a fixed salary of HK$3,500,000
per annum plus potential 15% profit bonus and 5% discretionary
profit bonus. It is also a term of the service agreements that
both Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong shall guarantee on United Non-
Ferrous (Overseas) Limited and its subsidiaries’ consolidated net
asset value of not less than the sum of HK$189,674,000 as at
3rd December, 2010. Otherwise, each of Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong
should be liable to pay half of such shortfall to the Group.

(I) Transactions and balances with other state-
controlled entities in the PRC

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
CNNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from
the issue of a convertible note as set out in note 22 and the
related interest expenses of approximately HK$1,479,000 to its
immediate holding company, CNNC Overseas, during the year,
the Group doesn’t conduct business with other state-controlled
entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements with certain banks and financial
institutions which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary
course of business. In view of the nature of those banking
transactions, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that separate disclosure would not be meaningful.

34. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 25th March, 2009, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a definitive agreement with Western Prospector
Group Ltd. (“Western Prospector”), a company incorporated in Canada
with its shares listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange Venture Exchange,
to acquire all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Western
Prospector from the holders of common share at a price of CAD$0.56
per common share and to subscribe for 5,371,350 subscription shares
of Western Prospector, representing approximately 10% of the issued
and outstanding common shares of Western Prospector, at CAD$0.56
per subscription share. The consideration will be satisfied in cash.
Western Prospector is principally engaged in the acquisition, exploration
and development of mineral properties located in Mongolia. A press
release published by Western Prospector in Canada in relation to the
entering into of the definitive agreement has been published by the
Company by way of an announcement on 1st April, 2009.

33.

34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B 75 i & B 5% (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 EHZ_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE

35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

35. AARIMEAA

B

ARARIMBARFBET
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Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Issued and fully paid Proportion of nominal value of issued/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations share/registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MBI B R BRITREERSL/ ANABRECRIT/
g PNEE-E EENE FE MR A & R A T (B B b TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE Gk
2008 2007 2008
ZET)\& EeEESal —“TT/)\£
% %
China Nuclear International Corporation British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$50,000 — Inactive
TREREEERAR EBRAHE & B AR50,000% 7T LEEB
CNNC International (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 — Inactive
RRER (BE)ERAF EiE i AR % 510,000 EEB
Dongguan United (note i) PRC Registered capital — Die casting and trading of
HK$40,000,000 metal products
REEM () FE £ AR 7 7 #£40,000,0007T BERHFELBER
Everhope Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 — Die casting and trading of
metal products
E % Bt LRRkEET BERHELBER
United Metals Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,602 — Trading of metal products
BHNEEERAF B L kB 1,602 HELBEM
United Metals Asset Management Co,, Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 — Investment holding
Hong Kong
EBRNHEE/BE LTRRET REZK
United Non-Ferrous (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,602 — Provision of administrative
services
EiE LB AR 51,6027 RETBRY
United Metals Asset Management (HK.) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 — Investment holding
Co, Ltd. B L@ikiEsT REER
United Non-Ferrous (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$17,622 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
EBRRHEE /A% TRRIT62ET REER
United Non-Ferrous Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Ordinary RM2 — Investment holding and
trading of metal
products
HREE EER2ET REZRRFEE
tBED
United Shanghai (note i) PRC Registered capital — Inactive
US$12,000,000
(note ii)
R g () HE 7t 1 B 712,000,000% 7T EEEY
(Ciga)
United Castings (note i) PRC Registered capital — Die casting and
HK$18,000,000 trading of metal
(note i) products
REMF ([ hE 17 AR 7% 7 #:18,000,0007T BERHELRER
(Cigs2)
Notes: B & -
(i) Dongguan United, United Shanghai and United Castings are established in the PRC (i) HEERH RELFSRESREATEPBEK
as wholly foreign owned enterprises. T ERINERE-
(i) As at 31st December, 2008, the capital of United Shanghai and United Castings (ii) R-_EENF+-_A=+—RH RELERE

were paid up as to US$3,870,000 and HK$17,750,000, respectively.

(iii) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

(i)

e 2 AR A 5 5l /3,870,000% Tt K& 7
#%17,750,0007T °

ERFEFR WHEEMMNEERRETER
EHES-
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Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for five years ended 31st

ATRAEBRBE_TTNFT _A=1+—H

December, 2008: IR BEFEZPEHE:
30 RESULTS E 4
For the year ended 31st December,
BHE+_A=+—HLEEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—EEINFE —TERF —TTRF T F Yl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET I BT I BT T BB T BT T
Revenue Iz 154,584 186,621 242,831 234,919 209,082
Profit (loss) before taxation [ & B s #1) (B518) 9,371 10,550 14,170 (4,394) (20,430)
Income tax (expense) credit FT5 % (FAX )% (957) (221) (754) 38 713
Profit (loss) for the year EREF (B1E) 8,414 10,329 13,416 (4,356) (19,717)
Earnings (loss) per share FRAEF (Bi18)
— basic (HK cents) — E AR (B 38 47 6.1 (2.0) :
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENREGE
As at 31st December,
R+ZHA=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
ZE2TNF ZFTRF ZTIERF —TE+F ekl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R T BT T BT T R T BT T
Total assets EERE 200,377 211,664 256,606 240,890 613,513
Total liabilities BERE (35,289) (36,310) (63,519) (51,216) (143,873)
Equity attributable to equity &N QA AJHEZEIFA A
holders of the Company — JE{5#EzE 165,088 175,354 193,087 189,674 469,640




Unit 2809, 28th Floor
China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2598 1010
Fax: (852) 2598 6262
Email: info@cnncintl.com

EFHRET
BEE2OWETKE
28182809%

==

E A (852) 2598 1010
FHE: (852) 2598 6262
EH: info@cnncintl.com
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